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Introduction

This article deals with the origin of the two carillons in S&o Paulo, Brazil. It is based upon the diaries,
newspaper clippings and a photo album of Leen 't Hart (1920-1992), who inaugurated the instruments
in 1951 and 1959 respectively.

The carillon of Vila Formosa, a suburb of S&o Paulo, was produced in 1950 by the Royal Eijsbouts
Bell foundry, who allowed me to consult their files, consisting of approximately 200 letters. The
carillon for the Cathedral of S&o Paulo was cast in 1958 by the Royal Bell Foundry Petit & Fritsen.
The archives of P&F regarding that period are not yet in order and the Leen 't Hart Collection contains
only newspaper clippings and some letters.

Both carillons were visited by Serge Joris from Gembloux, Belgium, in 2006 and he has contributed
recent data to this publication.

Vila Formosa

When Padre Frans Jansen visited Delft in 1949 on the occasion of his brother’s wedding, he heard the
carillon of the New Church and decided to have such a musical instrument in his parish church in Vila
Formosa, which was then under construction. He made inquiries of both Eijsbouts and Petit & Fritsen.
Eijsbouts advised him to install an automatic playing mechanism, if there was no possibility to appoint
a carillonneur. And in addition he recommended an ivory keyboard as a simple additional tool to the
automatic system. In January 1950 Eijsbouts made an offer for a carillon, similar to the one he had
cast in 1949 for Oisterwijk, the Netherlands, consisting of 42 bells based upon f1. In April 1950 Padre
Frans could announce that the fundraising went satisfactorily, which made it justifiable to work out the
plans in more detail. The Padre played the two bell founders off against each other and decided finally
in favour of Eijsbouts.

The three largest bells had to be installed as swinging bells as well and the fourth largest bell got an
Angelus mechanism. The three largest bells showed an image of Our Lady of the Sacred Heart, after a
design by Mrs Lucker, artist in Asten. In September 1950 the majority of the bells had been cast. The
largest ones were delayed as they were waiting for their lettering. The last and biggest one was cast on
October 18th. In the meantime Eijsbouts set up the belfry, which had been ordered by Frans separately
from a Brabant construction firm.

Inspection

There had been some correspondence about the desirability and possibility of testing the bells,
preferably in operational situation. Eijsbouts suggested to have this inspection done by the renowned
campanologist dr W. van der Elst (1882-1963) from Utrecht. The bells were on display at the bell
foundry from October 28 till the first of November. Besides the experts Dr Van der Elst, Herman
Teygeler (1908-1969) and Toon van Balkom (1886-1958), the carillonneurs Willem Créman (1895-
1970), Cees Roelofs (1905-2005) and Leen 't Hart were present. And also Padre Jansen’s family had
been invited. Tape recordings were made. The inspection report surprisingly mentions that the bells
were tuned in mid-tone tuning. We should take into account that shortly before André Lehr had
discovered that 17th century bells were tuned in that manner.

Now that the bells sounded so agreeable Eijsbouts asked Padre Frans to consider installing a keyboard
and to have a carillonneur in Vila Formosa for a 2 to 3-month period.
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Gramophone records

Earlier in the summer of 1950 Eijsbouts had supplied Padre Frans, on his request, with gramophone
recordings of carillon music for which Eijsbouts had called in Cees Roelofs. Padre Frans had supplied
a list of Brazilian and Dutch songs. The gramophone records were to be used in his radio fundraising
campaign. As the bells did not yet exist at that time the recordings have been made on an other
carillon. Eijsbouts made copies of these recordings on tape.

Chime

The melodies for the chime had to be punched on the surface of exchangeable drums of a type, then
new. They had a revolution time of 80-90 seconds and two drums were used for the quarters of the
hour. Eijsbouts appealed to Sjef van Balkom (1922-2004), the Den Bosch carillonneur. Roelofs was
asked to send the melodies by mail but he could not find the originals. Roelofs, who was blind, had to
make transcriptions from his Braille copies. But Van Balkom refused to use these as some of them did
not correspond with the examples in music books and therefore he distrusted all of them. The only
thing Roelofs could do, was search until he found the original copies.

The automatic playing installation. On the table
an ivory keyboard, below two drums

Transport en installation

In the middle of November the bells and their accessories were shipped from Amsterdam to Santos,
the harbour of S&o Paulo. The bill of lading mentions a total of 14.670 kgs. The cargo was insured at
Lloyd’s and shortly before departure a snapshot was taken of the bells in front of the church in Asten
and with the personnel of Eijsbouts. The invoice dates from the same week and amounts to f 62.350.
The shipping and unloading will not have given serious problems. We know that the bells and
keyboard were on display in Galeria Preses Maia in downtown S&o Paulo. Mr Gaston Wijnen from
Eijsbouts travelled for free to Brazil by oil tanker to mount the bells in the tower.
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